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(OFFENCES CHARGED UNDER SECTION 147,148,449, 380, 302
READ WITH SEC.149 AND SECTION 120-B OF THE
INDIAN PENAL CODE AND SECTION 25 & 27 OF nlu acT) |

Hindu monk Vedanta Keshari Sm'\mrniL Lakamanan;nda Saraswati
' ggf : (here-in- -after referred as “Swamiji”) was brutaily murd,ered in his Jaleshpeta

hermitage in the district of Kandhamal by some unl&‘cﬁw assallants on the
~ sacred day of Janmasthami i.e. 23™ August 2008. He was a highly revered
Spml leader whose life was dedicated to tribal welfare. It is on the record
' that Swam|3| combated fraudulent conversion by Christian missionaries and a
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fsuppon‘,er of anti cow slaughter movement. He was working for socio

i

‘economic well being of marginalized and indigent in Kandhamal and it is
alleged that the Missionaries those used charity as a facade for converting
_pecple. away from their native faith with alliance of Maoists are the
perpetrators and conspirators of the assassination of Swamiji. The
"+ ‘assassination followed wide spread communal riot in the district of Kandhamal
I8y > - ~causing huge casualty and loss to public property. It is alleged that during
: .'l:ﬁ:ugti_s't,' .;2008 a threatening letter was circulated amongst the District
Administration at Kandhamal to eliminate Swamiji, but surprisingly despite
: ,_pBI,i-gE;__'p?ﬁf;é&iori the life of Swamiji. could not be saved. The above named
-~ accused '.persons have been committed as perpetrators and conspirators



FACTUAL
EXPOSE
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DEFENCE

DETERMINATES

behind .the- klllmg of Swamf]: and charged for commission of offences

'punishabie u]s 147 148, @}?s,, 380 302 read with section 149 and section
. 1208 ofmdidnmai Code amon 25 and 27 of the Arms Act.
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2. - . The facts of the prosecution case as revealed from the case

recordis that o 23108.2008 st about 7.55 p.m. Swamiji along with his
_disdples were, pmsenth.at the hermitage at Jaleshpeta under Tumudibandh

Palice Station and weré preparfng celebration of Janmasthami. At that time 20
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“to 25 unknown pmns being armed with guns trespassed inside the Ashram

and fire indiscrimlnate!y klmng Swamijf and four of his associates namely

‘Amrutanandjl, ‘Mata Bhaktimayee, Kishore Baba and Puranjan Ganta. It is

alleged that wathin a span of 15 rnlnutes the assailants have fired more than

- 50 rourids causmg ‘death of .the above persons. The informant Bramhachari -
~Madhaba Chaltanya and other fn(nates of the Ashram including the students of

Kanyashram mmediateiy rushed to the spot and found the dead bodies of
Swamiji and others lying under pool of blood with bullet injuries. This fact was
immediately repor‘ted to O.I. G Tumudlbandh over telephone by the police
personnel deputed for secunty of Swaml;l who immediately rushed to the

- ‘spot. _Ultimately the present f.1.R. was filed before the police who immediately

Swung into action.- The services of the Scientific Offi icer, DFSL, Phulbani was
sought for, who visited the spot, took photographs of the dead bodies and the

site, seized empty cartridges and other mchrnlnatmg materials. Post mortem

exammatlon on the dead bodies of Swamiji and others conducted at the spot
after making necessary Iighting arrangements. The investigation of the-quaa
was later handed over to the Crime Branch and the investigating officer during

"lﬁires’cfgatlon found lnvolvement of Maolsts organization beside Christian

Mfssmnar}es behind the ki I!lng of Swamiji and others. He also found a well

> organtzed conspiracy of the miss#onanes _and Maoists to eliminate Swamijf

Uttimately on completion of invesbgation he submitted charge sheet Keeping
further lnvestigation of the case open. After completion of the formalities the

" present” accused persons were committed to the file of Hen'ble Sessions
Judge Phulbanl ancl transferred to th:s Court for disposal according to law.

3. Maccused pe“rédhs pie'nded innooence 2nd false implication.

4, Points for determination i this case |s:
(N Whether on 23.08.2008 at about 7.55 p.m. at Jaleshpeta
Ashram the accused persons were members of an
e ; unlawful assembly in prosecution of common object of
. which was to commit murder etc., committed the offence
of riotina?



(1) Whether on the said date, time end place the present

- accused persons were members of an unlawful assembly
.. in presecution of common object of which was to commit
~ murder etc,, committed the offence of rioting and at that

g m‘ﬁi'eyﬁ\%ﬂfé armed with deadly weapons like gun,

knife etc,?

(i) . Whether on-the sald date, time and place the present
~ accused persons were members of an unlawful assembly
~ in prosecution of common object of which was to commit

‘house trespass in order to commit offence punishable

with death, trespassed inside Jaleshpeta Ashram with an

- intention to commit murder of Swami Laxamanananda
. Saraswati and others? -

(iv)  Whether on the said date, time and place the present
accused persons were members of an unlawful assembly
in"prosecution of common object of which was to commit
the offence of theft, committed theft of mobile phones
by removing the same from the possession of Swami

.. Laxamanananda Saraswati and-others? -
(v) - Whether on the said date, time and place the accused
' persons were members of an uniawful assembly in
prosecution of common object of which was to commit
murder, committed murder of Swami Laxamanananda
©~ Saraswati, Amrutanandji, Mata Bhaktimayee, Kishore -
Baba and Puranjan Ganta? - ’
(vi) Whether during the year 2008 the present accused
" 'perscns were a party to a criminal conspiracy to commit
3 a2 murder of Swami Laxamanananda Saraswati and others?

(vit)  Whether on 23.08.2008 at 7.55.:p.m.> at Jaleshpeta

Ashram the accused persons were in possession of any
: . arm, fire arm and ammunition without any valid license?
(vili) Whether on the dale, time and place the accused

" " persons used arm, fire arm and ammunition. without any

valid license? - s .

Ba | ~/'THe prosecution has'examined 35 witnesses and exhibited as
- 'many as 58 documents and XXVIII material objects to establish the charges,
P.W.22 is the informant. P.W.1, 8, 9 are the sééufﬁ'v officials deputed at the
Ashram. ‘P.W.'B, 9, 24; 25,27, 32, 33 are the eyewitnesses to the incident.
P.W.S, 21, 26 and 35 are the Scientific Officers. P.W.11 Is the Executive
Magistrate in whose presence the inquest was conducted. P.W.15, 19, 2, 23
are the Medical Officers those conducted Post Mortem examination on the
dead body of Swamijl and others. P.W. 12, 16 and 29 are thé investigating
- officers whereas others'are post occlifrence witnesses as well as witnesses to
the seizure. On the other hand the accused Bijaya Kumar Sanaseth, Garanath

" Challanseth "'I';ave examined themseives as defence witnesses beside exhibiting

04 documents to prove their case.

Guiimvi =nos <At “the outset I would like to have a discussion on the

""" background and. the motives behind commission of the above crime. Learned

- PR



P.P, submitted before me that due to strong protest by Swamiji against

shivoin ,wnverslon and __,cow slaugl'-;er, the Christ:an missionary in connivance with
Py SR el it organ!ﬁ'ﬁéhs hm Mmm the offence-and the evidence on record
 MOTIVES dearly indicate the same. He rﬂ%’"‘efso submitted that although in a case

. BACKGROUND
T “~ T basing upon ‘the evidence of evevdtnesses, motive assumes little significance

: _-.-T yet in such a case Eﬁe, n@ﬁmoﬂ provide additional strength to the
i : - foundation of prasecuﬂomcesn‘ On the counter argument learned advocate on
: . penalf of . the acwpef ﬁrsoﬂs_ gec! that the prosecution has failed to
establish not only the motive. “but also any evidence to connect the

mvolvernent of Christian missionaries behind the offence. It cannot be

doubted that motlve i« a factor which prompts a person to commit the crime.

Absence “of motive does not corrode the ‘credibility of prosecution case but it
I“r;!ﬁst be Impressed that motive behind a crime Is a relevant fact and normaily

: b S prosecutlon is expected to adduce evidence in‘respect thereof. In cases where
o p'rc;gééutlon is not able to establish @ motive behind the alleged crime it
essumes importance espec.a!ly i cases where the prosecution rests on
. 'clrcumstantlel evidence or on withesses who have inimical background. Proof
' of motive on the part of the accused’ ‘persons to' commit an offence satisfies &
judiclal mind about the likelihood of the authorship but in its absence it is only
proper on the part of the Court to have a deeper search for motive It is well
i settled in law that where direct evidénce worth of credence the question of
; motlve is only of academic lmportaiice Sectlun 8 of the Ewdence Act provides
i Emstence of motive for oommlt’tfﬁg & crime [s not an absolute nequlrement of
" Jaw but it is always a relevant factor ‘which should be taken Into consideration
o the Court as the same is very likely te render assistance to the Courts well
d_ unaiyzing the prdscx:ution evidence and determining the guilt of thLI’thused.
s [[2010) g'scc 189, AIR 2011 sC 1777 Kulvinder Singh and ancther vs. State

of Haryana AIR 2011 s 3387 Dandu vs. sm*or Andhra Pradesh].

e o A NS rene IGHasE reported in AIR 2011 SC 1403 (2011 AIR SCW
. ©41845) In Sheo Shankar Singh v.-State of Jharkhand & another, while dealing
““ with the issue of motive, the Hon'bie Court held: :

o .“proof of motive; however, recedes info the background in
cases where the prosecur.fon relies upon an eye-witness account
of the occurrence. That Is because if the court upon a proper

: ' appraisal of the deposition of the eyewitnesses comes to the
= il _._conclusion that the version given by them is credible, absence -
: : ‘ ‘of evidence to préﬁ? the motive is rendered inconsequential.

- - Conversely even if prosecution succeeds in establishing a strong

motive for the comm!ss:on of the offence, but the evidence of



the eyew:tnesses s found unreliable or unworthy of credit,
existence of a motive does not by itself provide a safe basis for
- .. convicting the accused. That does not, however, mean that
_ proof of motive even in a case which rests on an eyewitness
“account does not tend strength to-the prosecution case or fortify
- the court in its ultimate conclusion.. Proof of motive in such a
situation certainly helps the ~prosecution and supports the
‘*eyemmes (See Shivaji Genu Mohite v. The State of

. Maharashtra, AIR 1973 SC 55: Hari Shankar v. State of U.P.
(1996) 9 SCC 40 and State of Uttar Pradesh v Kishanpal and
ors. (2008) 16 SCC 73: (AIR 2009 SC (Supp.) 1238: 2008 AIR

1 SCW 6322))".

oF In the present case it s dlear from the evidence of P.W.14 that
Swamljl was a prot&stor of cow slaughter and a pioneer among the Hindu
fundamentahsts and was looklng “after the education, health and general
developrnent of the weaker sectlon of the sbclety A month prior to the -
present incident at his ms..ance a criminal case was initiated for slaughtering
of cow for which there was a ‘threat to his Tife. ‘During cross-examination this
| w!tness has given further c!aﬂty and stated that during the year 2007 there
- was an .ttack on the life of Swamiji by “Christians. The work of Swamiji for
: uphftment “of the tribal communlty of Phulbani Beside preventing conversion
has definitely created bad blood among thé Christian community. Learned
_Addl. P P, has drawn’ the attentlon of this Court to the contents of Ext.53 which -
indicate that on 25.05. 3008 a meetlng was held at Betikola Darish Counsel
Church in which a reso!utlon ‘was passed to punish the perpetrators
responsible to prevent mlssionary work. - The resolutlon further Indicate to
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cbserve a Chnstlan celebratlon day In case of success of tm ‘mission in
~____punishing the persons responsible. The contents of Ext.56 a 57 further
‘he {4!/ . il » |nd1-te that there was a strcmg protest against the work of Swamiji wherein
: he was warned to refrain from acﬁviﬂes of religious conversion of people and
opposing cow slaughter The poIice basing upon the receipt of a threatening
letter '\Eide Ext.57 has made Station Dairy entry and made security
_arrangements for Swamiji. Admittedly the present accused persons are
_ -Christians and as per the evidence of P.W.17 (paragraph 7) soon after the
incident scme of the accused persons namely Bliaya and Garanath distributed
sweets at Kotgarh Church. The prosecution has also relied upon a Letter left
by the assailants at the site vide Ext. 5/2 wherein there was threat to Swamiji
for ﬁls work. No doubt the prosecutlon has relied heavily upon the evidence of
_ 'th_é eyewltnesses besfde otheér circumstantial evidence, but In my considered
view the incident dlscused abave clearly provide a strong edifice to the

§tructure_of prosecution. This Court has ‘got every reason to believe that.



because of the ?val,fare_ activities of Swamiji and his organization the
missionaries operating in the locality: have bore grudge and wanted to
eliminate him and have got a strong motive for that purpose.
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B. Let us have a discussron on the factual aspect of the

' prosecutlon case As per the evldence of the mformant P.W.22 on the relevant
SRR ... L g day ‘at about 7.55 pm ﬁhﬂe they were preparing for Janmasthami Puja at
' 3 Jaleshpeta Ashram and Swamljl and hls dlsciples were In.their room, heard
the sound of gun ﬂre Imrnedlately he came down from the Mandap and heard

the voice of Mata Bhaktlmayee saying “BANDHUKARE MARIDELE MARIDELE”,

He also noticed Malatl a student of class—VIIl of the Ashrarn, running towards

Mandap and disclosed that some black persons have killed everybody inside

“the room. This witness has stated to have marked the incident behind the
mango ‘tree and found 8 to 10 persons breaklng the door of room of Swamiji

by means of a long kati and a!so heard the sound of gun fire. He also heard

"“the sound from inside the room of Swamiji beslde sound of gun fire from the

guest room. Thereafter he not:oed about 20 to 25 persons moving away

.{': ' through the southern gate of the Ashram It is specifically stated at
?fj i paragraph -5 the persons breakmg the door have tied black cloth and put
; ‘i mask and monkey cap on their face, those persons were armed: with gun and
1‘\ : Kkati. Apprehending danger to hfe he did not proceed to the .room of Swamiji

‘and came back to the Mandap with students About half an hour thereafter
the, pollce carne to the spot and after ensuring the identity of tnewcﬂlce
officials they came out. At paragraph 6 this witness ‘gave a detail discussion of
S{[‘*’ ' the said place where the dead bodies of Swamijl, Mata Bhaktimayee, Kishore
: e Baba Amrutanandji and Puranjan Ganta were Iy!ng in pool of blood with
gunshot injuries on their bodies. Thls witness has stated to have lodged the

- FLR. at the spot The other lnmates of the Ashram P.W.25 supporting the

case of the prosecution has stated that on the relevant day while he was

present inside the room of Mata Bhaktlmayee noticed four persons coming

towards them and thereafter started ﬂring from the gun. Immediately he

pushed Amrutanandjl who was avaliable at the room of Mata Bhaktimayee

" and tried to escape from the back door but at that time & bullet stroke on the

2 right side wan of the room of Mata Bhaktimayee and he could managed to

esoapa Thereafter he conoealed himself and heard the sound of.gun firing. At

paragraph 3 he has stated to have notlced the presence of about 20 to 25

persons those managed to escape through the southern gate. Thereafter he

noticed the dead body of Swamlji and others Iylng dead with gunshot injury in



a-pool of blood. Swamiji‘was lying dead inside his toilet with gunshot injury.

- He also noticed the right leg of Swamiji hacked:  About half an hour thereafter

the police personnel came and took further steps forinquest and post mortem
on the dead bodies. This witness at paragraph 8 of his evidence has stated
siice four gun ‘men were having mask on their face he could not identify

“them. This witness was cross-examined by learned P.P. u/s.154 Evidence Act.

The iniates of the Ashram who are the witnesses to the sincident, P.W.32
Kumudini Pradhan and P.W.33 Malati Pradhan during evidence have stated

‘that during the year 2008 on the day of Janmasthami some culprits have

trespassed into the Ashram and killed Amrutanandji Baba, Swami
Laxamanananda Saraswati, Mata Bhaktimayee, Kishore Baba and a guardian
namely Puranjan Ganta. P.W.33 has stated that at the relevant time she was
inside the room of Mata Bhaktlmayee along with Manika Behera and Malati
Pradhen and Amrutanand Baba. At that time f\w assailants entered inside

" thelr room and stocd at the door while twoother assailants entered inside

their room and opened fire for which Baba Amrutanandji fell down with bullet
injuries.” Immediately she along with others rushed to the roof where
Janmasthami celebration Was going to be held, but Mata Bhaktimayee
returned to" her room. They shouted from the roof. The other eyewitness

“Malati Pradhan giving a detail desciption of the incident have stated that at

the relevant time they we_re “watching T.V. inside .the ‘room of Mats
Bhaktimayee who was getting ready for the Puja. At that time two assailants -

‘entered inside the room and opened fire at Amruta nandjl and two others were
~“8¥afding olitside the room. This withess has clearfy stated that two'!qssaiiants
“Who' entered Inside the room were masked whereas the cther “cwo who

standing outside the room were never masked 1t is further stated that the
‘assallants those entered Inside the room Were armed with shotguns and the

~ persons who were standing outside were "Having normal guns. Latter she
““found the dead bodies of Swamiji and others. Police officials those deputed .

duty at the Ashram lr;ElUdiﬁg the security Guard of Swamiji (P.W.1, 8 and 9)
supporting the prosecution case have stated that on the relevant day at about
7.55 p.m. They heard sound of gun fire iﬁ"s'idé'tﬁ'e' Ashram and noticed the

" dead bodies of Swamiji and others fysng in pool of blood with bullet injuries.
The pélice was later informed. P.W.8 has further clarified that the persons
“those trespassgd inside the Ashram while I_eawng threw away a letter directing

him 't6 hand over the same to the journalists. The 1.0. seized the said letter

“Ext. Efz The ﬂrst mvestigatmg ofﬂcer P W.16 Madhusudan Jenasamanta who



found five dead bodies !y_l_ng inside the _Ashtg.am in pool of biood. Later he

» % received the IEIRandto&;g _ Ivestigation and arranged to conduct inquest

ogei HEsupai-sitl g thedead’bodfgs?ﬁarese%%fme Executive Magistrate P.W.11. The FIR

" has been rﬁarkﬁda.': Ext13  whereas the inquest reports have been marked as

BN 70 11. He aisq_p_n:gggﬁr:eg the dead bedy chalian vide Ext. 15 te 19 and

‘seized the iﬁcfl;hlﬁéﬁnﬁ_ materials like <artridges, blood stains and other

articles vldé'-f_fxt.iﬁ;?_' L.:S Hq also seized the letter given by one Azad on

production by mhs'l':fagleqélms__n?ghal Patra P,W.8 vide seizure list Ext.6. The °

sclentific officers P-W.S has also taken photographs of the site and collected

the blood sample and hended over the same to the 1.0. and submitted a

detail report of the spot visit vide Ext.1. The investigating officer has stated to

have arranged post mortem examination on the dead bodies of Swamiji and

=“~ ~ “others, The prosecution has also examined the Medical Officers P.W.15, who

' conducted post mortem examination on the dead body. of Kishore Babe,

P.W.19 vu_rhd conducted- post mortem  examination on the dead body of

Puranjan_Ganta, P.W.20 who' conducted post mortem examination on' the

dead body. of Swami Laxamanananda Saraswati, P.w.23 who conducted post

\ . mortem examination on-the dead body of 'Mata Bhaktimayee. The above _

1 medical officers have submittéd the-pest fortem Teport vide/Ext. 12, 24, 25,

30 aﬁd'obiqeq that the death was due to shock and hemorrhagé_ana._dmge

__ o vital organs by_gunshot Injury. They hiave further stated that the injuries

: _'a're'hh‘émfc'ldal_and ante mortem in nature. The medical officers have further

opined that the injuries can be possible by fire arm .inclﬁdlhg_ the muzzle
= h’qt/ 54 loading gun (_E-xt_.30). asiiis, . G i

WS R SR WReined PR has Sificilbed: befot this Cours that the above
evidence dlearly indicate that i_t)e__depu} of Swamiji and others was hoﬁJﬁar
and" ante mortem in nature, The _qq;_cqsad persons have never disputed the

- ~ death of édeIJI and oiher_s due to gunshot injury. Therefore now this Court
should” have a"deeper scrutiny on_the evidence to ascertain the persons
responsiblé i.e. behind the killing.. I have carefully gone through the evidence
on'record with regard to the alleged incident leading to death of Swamiji and

“four others. All the witnesses examined by the prosecution ingluding the police

‘perscnnel depi;ﬂ:e&- at the -Asiaram have categorically stated that on 'thu;

relevant day some unknown Persons trespassed inside the Ashram and

committed murder of Swamiji and: four others by fifing them from a close

range. The_ inquest report and post mertem examination reporbc'-iudy

indicate the natuce.and:cause ofinjury v Swamiji'and others. It is & fact that
R L i
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the ‘prosecution has failed to examine the medical officer who conducted post
mortem on- the déﬂd bod‘y of Amrutanandj; but the inquest report Ext.10
clearly indicate that”the tleath of Amrutanandji was due to gunshot. There has
been absolutely "o ‘¢ross- examinaﬂon on the above score. The photographs
submitted by the sagntxﬁc officér provided additional support to the case and
the site of incident which clearly estabiish that the death of Swamiji and
others at the Ashram was due to gunshot mjury Recovery of empty cartridge

- lead, buﬂet lathi vide Ext.20 to 23 and the report of the Scientific Officer. On

examination of the above materials vide report Ext.33, 34, clearly indicate

-+ that the death of Swamiji and others was homicidal in nature and the injuries

are ante: mortem. Now it has bBecome a duty of this Court to ascertain the
persons respensible for musmg the death of Swamiji and others.

o io. g In order to establish the- “identity of the culprits the prosecution

has heawly relied upon the evidence of P.W.32 and 33 those are the students
of Kanyashram. P.W.32 during her evidence has stated to have marked the

-presence of four assailants with the help of CFL bulb in thelr room At
= paragraph 4 of the examination this witness has clarified that from amongst

the accused persons the assailants are present in- the dock. The court has
marked the demeanor of this witness and mentioned that the vﬂtnm feels
apprehens!ve to particularly identify the culprits, but gave. description of the
assailants as a black and tall person and later the said person was ‘identified

~ @s Durjyodhan Sanamajhi. Of course this wltness was cross- examined at

length, the witness has clarified that due to sheck she ‘was seriousfy scared

and did not disclose about the occurrence before the police. The other witness

P.W.33 Malati Pradhan giving details of the ldentsty of the assailants have

stated that during incident two assailants entered inside the room were

masked whereas two others standirfg outside the room were never masked.

This withess has identified accused D’urjyé&lian éanahajhi and Bijaya Kumar

Sanaseth as the persons who were standing outstde the room with normal -
gun. The assailants who entered inside the rooms were having shotguns. The

prosecution has examined the other of‘ﬂdals of the School P.W.31 and 34 and

proved the adrnission register of the school

B¢ = The other witnesses upon which the prosecution has also relied
'heavily are P.W.17 and 18. Of course during initial examination both the

w:tnesses failed to support the prosecution, during later stage they were
examined on recall as per the direction of the Hon'bie High Court and gave
details of the incident before this Court. P.W.17 supporting the case of the



proseqution has stated that due to fear in hls mlnd in pursuant to the threat

- extended wmw%ﬁdﬂs he could not_ venture to depose before

the Court, Under the m&eﬁtwﬂ‘df po!iee he has come to- -depose out.of his

_ free will-and mind. At pamgraph 7 it i& stated that three to four days prior to
the death of Swam}j& in one wenihg ‘he was pronaeding to Kotgarh Bazar from

his. house :and on the way near the main gai:e of Kotgarh High Schoo! saw
Bijay Chalanseth, Gafaném Chalanseth, Budha Nayak, Duryodhan Sanamajhli,

. Bhaskar Sanamajhi having assembled Ells&uss!ng thehselves Since they were

talking.on Swamiji, he could not resist his curlosrty to listen the discussion
and managed to hide himself behind the boundary of the High School. Bijaya
was telling Duryodhan and Budha to arTange people wlth weapons to go to

Jaleshpeta Asfiram. About 3 to 4 days after Swamiji was murdered and soon

thereaiter Bijaya and Garanath distributed sweets in Kotgarh Church. 1t is

_ further stated that two to three day‘s thereafter some unknown persons came

to the village iri a motorcycle and warned the vi!lagers not to tell anyl:h:ng
before the police in connection with the death of 5wamijl This witness was
cross examined exhaustively on the location where he heard the discussion -

. but nothing substantial has been eficited in support of the accused persons.
- Likewise P.W, ilduring his re-examination has stated that durlng August
,.2008_he had been to the jungle in search of Buffalos but failed to trace it.

While returning he fouiid a' group of j persons engaged in discussions among

_ themselyes. He tried to conceal himself and ascertain the. gist of thelr _
_discussion. It Is clearly stated that the | persons engaged in discussion Wera

Garanath, Bijay, Dufyodhan, Buddha, Sanatan, "Bhaskar and Munda. Ha'
ail the above persons.eartier and beside the above per_sons 10 to 15 others
per;ons including some female and some persons i khaki dress were also

. . present there. This-witness has identified the accused persons present in the

dock. At paragraph 8 he has stated that those persons were discussing about

& plen to.murder Swamiji and the persons wrth khakl dress were holding gun.

About 8 days thereafter Swamlji‘was murdered on the day of Janmasthami

and visited the Ashram ‘and found the dead bodles Th:s witness has also

stated about the threat given by the ‘Unknown persdns to the villagers. At

' _,panagraph 14 of the crﬁﬁ-e&arrﬁnatlon “this wrtness has clariﬂed that the
_ persons present were dismss!ng"’ to murder but he cannot specifically say
about the utterances of each person present in tne group

fos 22U

o 5 don }n order to connect the circumstarnces the proseoution has also
heavi!y rehed upon the evidence of P.W.29. who is the Deputy Superintendent
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Police "by "P.W.8 and satisfied _about the - involvement of the Maoists

“oranization bshind the crime, Ouring.. investigation- he examined Uttam

Gauntia bis!rig upon the information on 05,10.2008 he searched the house of
Duryodhan Sanamajhi at village Badagaon and seized a singie barrel muzzie

\examined Birendra Kanhar and Mahasingh Kanhar and found: conspiracy to

ommit murder of Swamiji. This_ witness has further clarified that during
fiegﬂgafibn he arranged Ballistic 'exam!r_:ationfof'-me:'&éiied guns bylé':‘(pgrts
t SFSL, Bhubaneswar, At Paragraph 14 the 1.0, has stated that on
12.12.2008 he got - reliable informat!pn_ regarding presence of the acased

s persens Bijay, Garnath, Buddha, Bhaskar near- a forest near village Sairial

under Kotgard ‘:ﬁo!'ice station to attend & meeting - held by Maoists. On

"13.12.2008 ‘he reached Kotgarh P.S, and found Kotgarh police aiready

day he a‘}ﬁpréhehc:ied Bljay, Garnath, Buddha and Bhaskar and shifted them to *
Chandili police station on sécurlty__ point_of view for further interrogation,
Where he ‘h’ecdv'éréq a cell ph‘one from. the possession of Bijaya and another
Cell phone from the possession of Garanath and seized the cell phones vide
Ext. 40 and 41 and M.0, XVII, XVI. _The 1.0, has further claimed to have

obtained the call details report from Bhubaneswar- Circle in respect of the

and 44, After receipt of the ballistic expert and.opinion. of the medical officer

< and sanction from the District Magistrate, -Kandhémal, he submitted the

charge sheet. During cross-examination the 1.0. has denied that the
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" have seized the Rag!ster vide Ext. 53'en preduetlon by one Ashok Sahu but

‘has admitted to have n mined the  withesses Malati and Kumudini

“'during- investigation, as they are not- prasent’ in the Ashram during Visit.

P.W.6,/7-and 13 are the witnesses t¢ the séizure-of the above Guns and Shirt

“‘and' claimed that in their presence the above ‘articles-were seized by the 1.0.

vide Ext.3, 4 and 5. P.W.13 “has' further- identified the culprits during
examination and further: fdmtiﬁed the houses to the poﬂoe

D0z ; S 'f*qug, BECTIRRENY [ SR =1 20D
13. The learned public. prosecutor whlle metscubusry arguing the
case has submilted that there was clear-cut motive behind assassination of

~Swamiji and others and the present accused persons are the perpetrators and

conspirators of the said crime. Relying, heavily upon the rulings of Hon'ble
Court.in case reported in.2004 (4) Crimes 294 (SC) in Munsi Singh and others

Vs, S;ate of M.P. and (2011) 50 OCR SC 236 in Mohammea‘ Arff @ Ashfaq vs.

State of NCT of Delhj and AIR 2007 sc 2425 in Hira and anotf_:er vs. State of -
Rajsthan,. has urged. before me that although the Iinvestigating ofﬁce'r has

_failed. to ‘conduct T.I. Parade in respect of the suspects during the

investigation yet that cannct be.a ground to.discard the entire prosecution
‘case which is otherwise clear, It is also-urged that this Cou."ut has no reason to
disbelieve the Investlgating officer .who in due discharge of his duties

apprehended the accused persons and after collection of sufficient matena!s'. :
- submitted charge sheet against them. On the counter argument learned
- ‘advocate ofv behalf of the accused persons-drawn the attention of *husfl&r’t to

the inconsistencies ‘available in the prosecution case and submitted that the

-"prosewtlon has very well at'fempted to implicate the accused persons by

hiring witnesses.\Whenever the witnesses failed to support the prosecution
case at the imtiai stage,- _they started supporting during examination on recall

- 2T A Sadealdnd

for the reasons best known to the prosecution. The evidence of P.W.33 should

= _Tyet be Trelied- upon as she is a child’—wltness and whenever the witnesses have

constantly ‘stated ‘that the accused persons were masked, evidence of P.W.32

- emd 33 those sdent!fled the accused p!rsans namely Duryodhan and Bijaya

should not be relled upén, He has relied upon the rulings of Hon'ble Court in
cases reported in 2007 (38) ‘OCR SC 558 in Harischandra vs. State of

‘Maharashtra, (2005) 31 OCR 421 in. Republic of India vs. Rabindra Kumar Pal

@ Dara Singh and 2011 (1) OLR. (SC) 818 in Rabindra Kumar Pal @ Dara
Singh vs. Repub.’lc ofdndias uoriz =

- ol 10 .-('
14, : The facts presented by prosecutlon in the previous paragraphs
indicate that on the relevant day about 20 to 25 persons by forming an
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unlawful assembly trespassed lns:de the Ashram with the evil mtention te
commit the murder of ﬁwarmji and others., Now this leaves us with the
question whg.ther the c:ommisslon of rnurder by member of an unlawful
_assembly does have murder as its ccmmon objedi It is now well settled law
that the provisions of Section 145 IPC will be altracted whenever any offence
committed by any member of an unlawful assembly in prosecution of the

- common_object of tl]a_t.__ assembly, or when the. members of that assembly
knew that offence is likely to be committed in prosecution of that object, so

_ that every person, ‘who, at the time df committing of that offence is a
‘member, will be"aiso-vlcaﬂously‘mdwgui'!ty of that offence. Section 149 IPC
creates a constructive or vicarious liability of the members of the .unlawful

" assembly for the urlawful acts committed pursuant-to the com mon object by
-~ ény other member of that assembly. This principle ropes in every member of
~ 'the as'sémbly--ta be guilty of an offence where that offence is committed by
any- member of - that assembly “in ‘prosecution of «common object of that

committed in prosecution of that object. [Lalji-v. State of U.P. (1989) 1 SCC
437 (AIR 1989 SC 754); Allauddin’ Mian v. m-of-ﬂlhar (1989) 3 SCC 5:
(AIR 1989 SC 1456) Ranbir Yadav v. State of Bihar, (1995) 4 SCC 392: (AIR
‘1995 5C 1215: 1995 AIR SCW 1980} =i svzited

o : In another case reported in AIR 2011 SC 3581 in Ram Chandran
and ol:hers vs, State of Kerala Hon'ble Apex Court has dealt with the scope
and object of section 149 IPC at length and held that:

“section 149 essentially have two ingredients, (i) that’4he

offence must be committed by any members of unlawful

e i assembliy consisting five or-more persons and (ii) in such
: offence must be committed in prosecution of the common

object u/s.141 IPC of that assembly or such as the members of

= 2. ilz : that assembly knew was. iikely-to be committed in prosecution
Bt of the common object. _Clarifying the expr&ss:on common
object the bench has fqrther observed that it is not necessary

- that- “there should ‘have a prior concert in the sense of a

meeting of minds of the members of the unlawful assembly.

"The cause object may form on the spore of the moment. It is

- enough if it is then adopted all the members and is shared by

all of them”, .

A

Inanother case reported in AIR 2011 SC page 3327 in Waman and others vs.
State of Maﬁarasthra Hon'ble Court has stated that in order to attract section
149 IPC it must be shown that the incriminating act was done to accomplice
the common object of the unlawful assembly. It must be within the knowledge
of-other members that the offénce is likely to be committed in prosecution o
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" the common object and if such requirement is satisfied, then they would be
“held liable u/s.149 IPC. t?is thus clear-that it is not possible to define the .
constituents or dime.ns:ans of an cffence ujs 149 IPC simplicitor with regard to
“dictionary meaning of the words “Unlawful Assembly or Assembly”. "An
assembly is @ company of members assembied together in & place, usuzlly for
a commaon pi.wpose The court is concerned with the unlawfully whenever five
“or more persons. mmmitted & crime with a common object or intent then each
of them would be I!ahlei for commission of such offence in terms of section 141
and Y 1pEEEST s
15 S In the instant case the evidence on record dearly indicate tr;at
“about 20 to 25 persons have trespassed inside the Ashram and at that time
they were arfned with deédlyﬁeapons' like gun etc. No doubt the witnesses
examined ‘by the prosecution could identify only two out of them namely
accused Duryodhan and. Bijaya but it cannot be said that there was no
unlawful “assembly. The other eyewitnesses. to the incident P.W.1 at
-paragraph-1, P.W.S at paragraph 1 of his evidence have clearly stated
i regardlng trespass of more than 20 persons inside the Ashram Otherwise
evidence on record indicate that those persons were armed with guns, knife
~and othér ‘weapons. The above normally indicate that those persons were
having common ob_}ect to commit any offence. Accordingly their assembly can
be termed as unlawful within the meaning of section 141 of Indian Penal
Code. In view of the settled position of law discussed above each member of
the assembly will be held liable for which offences committed by eny member
of that assembly. I must mention that' there is absoluﬂély no cross
examination on that score and inclined to conclude that there was an unlawful
aséembly inside the Ashram with a common object to commit murder of
Swamijl. SRR

161 215 Learned Advocate on behalf of the accused persons have drawn
" the %tt‘ention of the Court that the witnesses those initially turned hostile have
heen examined on recall and during re-examination they supported the case
~ of the prosecution. This unusual behavior of the witnesses clearly indicate that
2t a later stage the witnesses have been tutored at the instance of the police.
" Hence this Court should go siow while accepting on the testimony of their
‘evidence. His submissien is basically referred to the evidence of P.W.17 and
18. Learned P,P. on the counter argument submitted that whenever this type
of offence have been committed in a highly planned manner, it is difficult to
expect a witness to speak the truth. Even now a days the witnesses are not
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= IGE S : ; ... ready to speak the truth for so many féa_sons which is almost known to
sbr o) oltdiz everybody. Whenever the witnesses P.W.17 and 18 have shown the courage
to speak the truth before the Court, the Court shouid not disbelieve their

staten_iéhté on record. This issue has been -wlldely discussed by Hon'ble Apex

Court in one case reported in AIR 1988 SC 696 in Appa Bhai vs. State of

Gujarat:

_ 680) Chinnappa -Reddy, J. speaking for the Court succinct!

"Experience reminds us that civilized people are generally
insensitive when a crime is committed even in their presence.

i They withdraw .both from the victim and the vigilante. They

keep themselves away from the court unless it is inevitable.
They think that crime like civil dispute {s between two
individuals or parties and they should not involve themselves.
This kind of dpathy of the general public is indeed unfortunate,

" but it is there everywhere wheéther in village life, towns or cities.

Cne cannot ignore this handicap with which the investigating
agency has to discharge its duties. The Court, therefore, instead
of doubting 'the prosecution case for want of independent
witness must consider the broad spectrum of the prosecution
version and then search for the nugget of truth with, due regard
to probability if any, suggested by the accused. The court,
however, must bear in mind that witnessés. to a-serious crime
may.not react in & normal manner. Nor do they react uniformiy.

The horror strickén witnesses at a dastardly crime or.an act of
-egregious nature may react differently. Their course of conduct

fmay_not be of ordinary type in the normal circumstances. The
court, therefore, cannot reject their evidence merely because
they have behaved or reacted in an unusual manner.-

In another case reported in F“t_arlu_é l-":r."ata;v.%State of Haryana, -{A-IR 1983 SC

y set out what

might be the behavior of different pgrsons witnessing the same. incident.

Hon'ble Court observed: (SCC p.330, SCC (cri) P.604, Para 6.{at P.682 of

AIR):

“Every person who Mt'nesses“a murder reacts in his own way.

Some are stunned, become speechless and stand rooted to be
spot. Some become hysteric and start waiiing. Some start
shouting for help. Others run away to keep themselves as far
removed from the spot as possible. Yet others rush to the
rescue of the victim, even going to the extent of counter
altacking the assailants. Every one reacts in his own special
way. There is no set rule of natural reaction. To ‘discard the
evidence of a witness on the ground that he did not react in any

particutar manner is to appreciate evidence in a wholly

~ unreaiistic and unimaginative way. 2

- - P e |



Falsity of particular material witness or material particular would not ruin it

_ from the beginning'to erid. The maxim FALSUS IN UNO FALSUS IN OMNIBUS
~“hes rio appﬂcatton in tndia and the witriess cannot be branded as a liar. In
_case this.maxim-is applied in atHhe cases it is to be feared that administration

of cﬂmma! justlce would come to.a dead stop. Witnesses just cannot help in
glvlng ernbrmdery to a story, however, true in the main. Therefore, it has to
be appraised. in each case as to what extent ‘the evidence is worthy of

- credence, and merely becuﬂsaln some respects the court considers the same

to be insufficdent or unworthy or reliance; it does not necessarily follow as &
matter of law that it must be dlsregardeﬂ in afl resper_ts as well.

_ In Shivay Sahebrac Bobade & Ancther v. State of Maharashtra,
AIR 1973 SC 2622, Hon'ble Court has held tha.t'

']

- Thus too frequent acqurttals of the gw!ty may lead to &

AR 1o 2 Jbrodous penal law, eventually eroding the judicial protection of
the guiltless. For all these reasons it is true to say, with

Viscount Simon, that "a miscarﬂage of justice may arise from

.. ~ithe acquittal of the gullty no less than from the conviction of

the innocent...” In. shoit, our jurisprudential enthusiasm - for
presumed innocence must be moderated by the pragmatic need

© - =. . to make criminal justice potent and realistic. A balance has to
Lo U oo bestruck between chasing chance possibilities as good enough
to set -the delinquent free and chopping the logic “of
preponderant probabifity to punish marginal innocents. We have

-adopted lhese cautions in analyzing the evidence and -

- ‘appraising the soundness of the contrary conclusions. reached
by the court below. Certalnly, in the last analysis reasona‘bfe
doubts must operate to the advantage of the appellant..” = , =

1l

See also Bhagwan Siryh & others vs. Stqteof M.P.; AIR 2002 SC 1621
Gargadhar Behera & others vs. State of Orissa, AIR 2002 SC 3633 and S.

. Ganesan v. Rarna Raghuraman & others, (2011) 2 SCC-83) (AIR 2011 SC

(cni. )41‘3} O LOmINas F©
On apprec:atlon of hostile witnesses Hon'ble Apex Court in one
case reported in AIR 1997 SC 2780 in State of Gujrat vs. Anirudh Singh has

“Every criminal trial is a voyage in quest of truth for public

Justice to punish the guﬂty -and restore peace, stability and

- order-in-the society. Every- citizen Who has knowledge of the

- commission of cognizable offence has a duty to law information

“before the police and cooperate with the idvestigating officer

~who Is enjoined to collect the evidence and if necessary

- summeon the witnesses lo give evidence. He is further enjoined
to adopt scientific and all fair means to unearth the real

= offender, lay the charge sheet before the court competent to

take cognizance of the offence. The charge sheet needs to

" observed:. : R Sacel T Ao ZHeE
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- = contain - the facts constituting the offence/s charged. The

_accused is entitled to a fair trial. Every citizen who assists the

~inves on is further duty bound to appear before the Court

- ©of Session or competent - criminal court, tender his ocular

~evidence ‘as a dutiful _and. -truthful- citizen to unfold the

= . prosecution case as given in his statement. Any betrayal in that
beha!f !s,a stqo to destabifize social pear:e, order and progress

\u =z

The fact that the WIMess&s ‘were declared hostile at the instance of public
prosecutor and he was allovged to cross-examine the witnesses furnishes no
~ discretion for rejed:ihg en~blod: the evidence of the witnesses. However, the
Court has to be Very careful_with an emphasis that the witness who makes
) dlfferent statements at dffferent times has no regards for the truth. His
-evidence has to be read and considered as a whole with a view to find out
whether any weight should be attached to it. The couft should be slow to act
¥ on the testimony of such a witness & normally it should look for corroboration
to his testlmcmy (ATR 2003 sC 4230 ln _State of Rajasthan vs. Bhabam and '
" : another) S5 2 2 -' 9

In another case. reported in AIR 2006 SC 951 in Radha Mohan

| - SSngh and others Vs. State of U.P. Hon'ble ‘Apex Court has observed:

...... .. Tts well settled ‘that the evidence of a prosecutron wftn&cs

"~ cannot be rejected in toto. merely because the prosecution
~ chose to lreat him as._hostile and cross-examined him. The
evidence of such witness cannot be treated as effaced or
washed of the record altogether but the same can be accepted

to the extent his version is found to be dependable on a careful

'_scrutfny thereof..” . .. o 11

—Sirmlar view has been observed by Hon’ble Apex Court in cases reporte'd in
. AIR 2009 SC (Suppi.) 4282 in ‘Mahesh v. ‘State of Mahd‘r‘éshtra, AIR SC 2558
.In Rajendra and another’vs. State of U. P., 2010 (6) 'SCC 533 in Gobindapa
_and others vs. State of Karnataka. In the dPesant case o doubt P.W.17 and
18 were declared hostile at the instance of learned Public prosecutor and in a
later part they were re-examined 6n recall and clearly deposed .about the
compiacency of the present accused perséns in the offences. Both the above
witnesses were cross-examined at length but nothing substantial has been
elicited to disbelieve their Witness. In m_y considered view that whenever the
‘Witnesses sh'owmg colrage to depose at;é't:t the facts within their knowledge
this Court cannot refuse to act upon the said evidence. A truthful witness has

' becdme e rare Cbmmodlty and a criminai\court must learn to show due

_ .' sens:twity to. his evidence instead of rejecﬂng the evidence in toto. No doubt
‘the facts presénled by the prosecutlon ‘established highly orgamzed and pre-

planned way in mmmﬂiﬁs eﬁ'eahé STherefore this Court should give due

PN
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weightage to the evidence having"pn eye upon the circumstances instead of
brushing aside the evlden_ée as unreliable/ interested/ tainted with bias.
Sounding a note of caution for the trial Court, Hon’ble Apex Court in one case
reported in ‘AIR 2002 SC 1965 In Krishna' Mochi and another vs. State of
Bihar, Hon’ble Apex Court has said: o'l e DR

“that the Cburt_. while appreciating the evidence should not fose

sight of these realities of life and cannot afford to take an

- unrealistic approach by sitting in ivory tour. I find that in recent

times the tendency to acquit an accused easily is galloping fast.

It is very easy lo pass an order of acquittal on the basis of

minor points raised in the case by short Judgment so as to

achieve the yardstick for disposal. Some_ discrepancy is bound

to be there in out and every case which should not weight with

the Court so long as .it does not materially affect the

prosecution case. In case discrepancies pointed out are in the

realm of pebbles, the Court should tread upon but if the same

are boulders, Court should not make an attempt to jump over

the same. These days when crime is looming much. and
~ humanity is suffering and society is so much affected thereby

duties and responsibilities of Court have become much more.

- Now the maxim “let hundred guilty person acquitted, but not a

single innocent be convicted is in practice is challenging Worid.

_over and the Court have been compelled to accept that society

suffers by wrong convictions and it equally suffers by wrong

acquittals.” SRy 2
. - . '! :

In another case reported in AIR 1999 SC 883 Mohan Singh and another vs.
State of U.P. Hon'ble Apex Court has observed that the Courts have been
e - removing the chaff from the grain. It has to disperse the suspicious coud ‘and. -
244(" dust out the smear of dust as all these things clog the very truth so lopg as
chaff, cloud and dust remains, the criminals are clothed with this prot‘etﬂve
layer to receive the benefit of doubt. So it is the solemn duty of Courts, not to
‘merely conclude and leave the case the moment suspicions are created. It is
the onerous duty of the Court within permissible limit to find out the truth. It

means on one hand no innocent persons should be punished but on the other -

hand to see no person committing an offence should get scot free if in spite of
such effort suspicion does not dissoive, it remains writ at large benefit of
doubt has to be credited to the accused. e _

17 In the présent case the evidence of P.W.17 and 18 those
witnessed the congregation of _t__hé accused persons more particularly in
company of persons-dressed in police clothe armed with guns dearly pointed
out to an unholy nexus between the accused persons and the Maoists
organlzafion. P.W.24 has also clearly stated about involvement of the Maoists -
outfit with the present accused persons and specifically stated that accused
Bhaskar is in hand with the Maoists and has undergone training at Daringibadi
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For 15 to 20 days. 1 fa:ied tg apprec:iate the submlsslon py fearned advocate

o xS on behalf _of_.B‘ii’e_f_;" raogs that the evidence of the said witnesses

bt o
- should be rge&’ed as a whdle. Hé\ﬁbver theatrus’tworthlness of the witnesses

will be discussed at the later part_ of the judgment, i
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- oABd 01 UCUa lonnss_ bRs olaw oﬂ:ﬁpbfbd&ﬁen of-»evidence has been widely discussed by
R O T Hon“blé Court Whl’&?’&?! b& suﬂ'lmarizea.gs follows:

= o Dbt 'S e R e R v,s.... RESN < 2.

e empoul oz :A-amlfna! trfaHs not a-fairy tale wherein one is free to give flight
e _ = .- toone’simagination and fantasy. Crime is an even in real life and
S0 e Lwlle D sigsthesproduct of an interplay between different human emotions.
S0L demon (= o=w=n Lo =Inoarriving at a conclusion about the guilt of a crime, the court has
S0t L Zhe two oo zs L aotojudge the evidence by theyardstick of probabilities, its intrinsic
Siiee o=l sll GLae wt= . o WORth and -the sanimus of -witnesses. Every case, in the final
N 1 S nEle ne Sasoanalysisy would have to ' depénd upon its own facts. The.court musf'
Tonimenl T =0 s bearin mind that “human-nature is too willing, when faced with
e wz b vbrutal crimes, to' spin-storf®s out of strong suspicions. * Though.an .
P aéﬂ'eﬁce may- be gruesome-and -revolt the human Consdence, an
-, accused ‘can ' be convicted only on lega! evidence ‘and not on
© = - surmises and conjfecture. The law does not permit the court to
N ©L 5= punishthe accised of thé basis-of a moral convictionh or suspicioh
Jevy= o o alone. “The burden of preof in-a criminal trial never shifts and it is.
aiways the burden of tmmmﬁon to prove its aase bayohd of
the prosecution to prove its case beyond reasonab!e doubt on the
- nzrul pasis-of acceptable evidencé.”In-fact, -it' is a settled principle of
... . criminal jurisprudence .that the more serious the offence,- the
“ﬁrf&"ér the degree of proof required, since a higher degrée of
| - - assurance is required to-convict the accused. The fact th
offence was committed.in a very cruel and revolting manner |
" initself be a reason for scrutinizing the evidence more closely, !est
Lerool < thesshocking nature “of thve crime induce an -instinctive reaction
o against dispassionate judicial scrutiny of thie facts and law. (vide:
SEARE et T At N * ‘Kashmira Singh v. State of Madhya Pradesh, AIR 1952 SC 159;
U Leie o sis o tan o Statevof Punjab v. Jagir Singh-Baljit Singh & Anr., AIR 1973 SC
i E 2407, Shapkarlal Gyarasil rt v. State of Maharashtra, AIR
AT SRS B S ] 'S¢ 765, Mousam Singhe oy& Ors. v. State of West Bengal,
Lol et no Ul Lensiniun Sl {2003)-12-SCC 377" '8nd Aloke Nath Dutta“& Others v. State of
West Bengal, (2007) 42 5CC 230)<7 oo o1 bis

L oened sl i Sarwan Singh Rettaf Singh \f“St’aEé'é?‘Fﬁﬁ]ub AtR 1957 sC 637, Hon'ble
' Court observed (Pam-‘tzj G Gl Rsgin i 28 < <916

(s ooTEL i = usisl "cepsidered as @ whole the prosecution story may be true; but

e _ between 'may be true’ and ‘must be true’ there is inevitably &
e “ long distance to trave! and the whole of this distance must be

demon S e UEEn Loc covered by legal, reliable &nd’ unimpearhaﬂfe evidence [before
= o8N accused.can be convictedi™ . . owL

e

e Clt!ng “the evidence adduced bY PW-32 and 33 learned

advocate on behalf of the accused persons submitted before me that their
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evldénce should not be aoceptea -és they have been examined after a pretty
long time. Further P.W. Sﬁm to be a child witness and it is dangerous to
accept his ev!cfence to connect accused Dujyodhan with the alleged offences.
' Referring to the evidence of P.W.34 it is alleged that actually no student with
'name Malati Pradhan wa,s pursumg her studies at Kanyashram during the
relevant “period, forwhteh ‘her evidence carries no meaning. On the counter
~argument feamed Addi P.P. has submitted that P.W. 32 and P.W.33 are the
students of Sanskrit efltha Kanyashram. A student of Sanskrit requires high
memory power to é& the Sanskrlt verses slokas etc. in mind. Therefore even
if investigating officers have committed an error by not examining them at an
: ’abpropr_‘ié‘t'é' time, this Court :_qannqt'_‘_refuse to accept their credibility. It is also
-Urged that the evidence of P.W.32 and 33 being highly interested for the
prosecution should not be ?éiléa upon to record & conviction, Law on
appneclatton of evidence of wttnesses of so call interested{ related witnesses
" “nas been widely discussed by Hon'ble Apex Court wherein it has been heid
that an interested. withess must have some direct interest In havlng_ the
accused séméhow convicted for some extrangous reason and a near reiative :
of the victim is not necessarily an interested witness. Hon'ble Apei Court has
conitantly “held that as a genersl rule the court can and may act on the
- testimony of a singie witness provided he is whoily reliable. There. is no legal
- impediment in convieting a person on sole testimony of an sihgie witness.
That is the logic behind the section of 134 of the Evidence Act. But if there are
doubt about the testimony the Court will insist en corroboration. In fact it is
not the humber, the quantity but the quality that is material. Thé?(ﬁ}ne
honoured principle is that evidence has to be weighed and riot couhted. -
‘[Vadivelu Thevar v. State of Madras; AIR 1957 SC 614; Jagdish Prasad v.
- State of M.P. AIR 1994 SC 1251: (1994 AIR SCW 564); Sunil Kumar v. State
Govt. of NCT of Delhi AIR 2004 SC 552: (2003 AIR SCW 6026); Namdeo v.
- ‘State of Maharashtra AIR 2607°SC (Supp.) 1060: (2007 AIR SCW 1835); Kunju
@ Balachandran v. state of Tamilnadu, AIR 2008 SC 1381: (2008 AIR SCW
835); Bipin Kumar Mondal v. State of West Bengal AIR 2010 SC 3638 (2010
AIR SCW 4470) Mahesh & another v. State of Madhya Pradesh (2011) 9 SCC
626 AIR 2012 §C 2172, 2012 AIR SCW 2898), Kishan Chand v. State of
Haryana in 2013 (1) SC 222), (AIR 2013 SC 357: 2013 AIR SCW 210).

= Likewise appreciation of evidence of ‘a child witness has been
discussed in- @ judgment reported in AIR 2012 SC 2955 in K. Venkata
Swamulu vs. State of Andhr;a*Pradesh,- ‘wherein it has been held that:
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“the evidence of a child witness has to be subjected to closest
iny and can: be accepted only if the court comes to the
A fusion that the child understands the question put to him
= ET .and he s capablé of giving rational answers (see Section 118 of
the Evidence Act). A _child witness, by reason of his tender age,
Is a pliable witness. He can be tutored easily either by threat,
coercion or inducement. Therefore, the court must be satisfied
Hiat the attendant circumstances do not show that the child was
‘acting under the influence of someone or was unider a threat or
coercion. Evidence of & child witness can be relied upon if the
_court, with its experiise and ability to évaluate the evidence,
comes to the conclusion that the child is not tutored and his
evidence has a ring of truth. It is safe and prudent to look for
corroboration for the evidence of a child witness from the other
~ evidence on record , because while giving evidence a child may
give scope to his. imagin&b‘on and exaggerate his: version or
meay develop cold feet and not tell the truth or may repeat what
he has been asked to say not knowing the consequences of his
- deposition in the Court. Careful evaluation of the evidence of &
child witness in.the background and .context of other evidence.
on record is @ must before the court dec!deslo rely upon it.” 5

: It is a settied principle of Jaw that a -chnd ‘witness can be
'oompetert wilness promded statement of such witness |s reliable, trdthful and.
is corroborated by other prosecution evidence. The Court in such
circumstances can safely rely upon the statement of a child witness and it can
form the basis for conviction as well. Further, the evidence of a child witness
and credibility thereof would depend upon the circumstances. of éach case.
The only precauticn which, the court should bear in mind, while assesslng the
ev:dence of a child witness, is that, the witness must be re!table one and
his/her demeanor must be like any other oompetent witness and that there
exists no likelihood of being tutored There is no rule or practice that in every
case the evidence of such a witness be corroborated by other evlde.nce before
a conviction cen be allowed to stand but as 2 fule of prudence the court
almys ﬁnds it desirable to seek corroboration te such evidence from other
reliable evidence placed on reoord _Further, it is not the law that if a witness is
a child, his evidence shall pg_r_ejected, even if it is found r‘ellable.

| e | the present case no doubt P.W.32 is 2 child witness but there
is no reason to discard her evidence. The praidlng officer after necessary
satisfaction that the witness able to give rat:onai ‘answers bo the queries has
“examined her and nothing substantial has been elicited during: cross-
exammation to conciude that she was tutored. Rather at Para 7 she has stated
that as she was shocked on the scene and serlously scared she did not
disclose the occuirence before police. 1 find sufficient merit in the submission
by learned P.P. that the said witness being a student of Sanskrit can be said
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¢ U S tothave'got a -strohg memeory and her evidence with regard to identity of

yels s * 3 Duryodhan%nmthe@ﬁt&‘mm regard to the dispute over identity of

“ﬂahﬁwwﬁanlﬁnaﬂmanwm Ext.55. The said document indicate that

: Malati Pradﬁan ﬁ:a_s_ admitted to ﬁar‘iyashramh-as & student having got

admission vide SI.N0.55/2004 in dass-VI and the sald student P.W.33.at

: _paragraph 5 of the cross-examination has clearly stated to have got admission

S ST Cinvhe schodl in class-VEdn 2004. May be’the informant P.W.22 at Para 4 of

“ the evidence has stated th’a’t-l‘; ‘during incident he heard the scream of Malati

s “ Pracdhan, a student of ‘C'fass-\}'lll of the Ashram, but in view of clear evidence

of Malati Pradhan, which is sUppbrted by documents, the evidence of P.W.22

cannot be given much weight. This Court inclined to hold that sald Malatl

Pradhan is a truthful witness and was available at the spot during the incident.

“~ '~ The presecution has also |aid dear evidenceito hoid that the other eyewitness

P.W.33 was reading at Sanskrit Kanyashram, Jaleshpeta during the relevant

year having taken admission in the Kanyashram vide SI.No.8/194 (Ext.54/1). .
The “evidenice of 'P.W.33 who" categorically identified the jpresence of

| Duryodhan Sanamajhi.and. Bijaya, Sanaseth also mspiré.éonﬂdendé.l‘_ This

- witress Kas cleafly stated to have marked the presence of the above pe_‘rsoﬁs

" with the light avallable in the room. I must -mention, her cross-examination

“instead of demolishing the case of the-prosecution has provl_ded. additionat

head of Amrutanandji during incident. May be this witness was failed to say
| . : et v < SRR i L 5y
about the wearing apparels of the assallants, this Court cannot refuseiio

accept the testimony considering the mental faculty of the witness on such
et s corutal incident. My above viewis.supported by the observation of Hon'ble

ajead of Apex Court in one case, 2013 SC 1085 in Kuria and another v. State of
' Rajasthan wherein at parag_rapﬁ 18 it has been observed '

“Sterling worth, is not an expression of absolute rigidity, the
use of such an expression in the context of criminal
Jurisprudence would mean a wilness worthy of credence, one
_ who is reliable and truthiul. This has to be gathered from the
entire statement of the witnesses and the demeanour of the
witnesses, if any, noticed by the CGourt. Linguistically, ‘sterling
worth’ means ‘thoroughly. excellent’ or 'of great.value’. This
- term, in the context of criminal jurisprudence cannot be of any
oY S o “ “rigid meaning. It must be undérstood as a generic term. It Is
e R e s . only an expression that is used for judging the worth of the
statement of a witness. To our mind, the statements of the
- - witnesses are reliable, trustworthy and deserve credence by the
Court. They do not seem to be based on any falsehood.”

In my considered view, P.W.32 and 33 those identified the presence of
“accused Duryodfian and Bijaya at the site have did an excelient job and their

support to it, who In categorical term has stated that the bullét-hit on the -
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evidence has got & high value for the purpose of this case. The submission
- that the lnvestigahng officer has failed to examine them at appropriate time
_ may be regarded & as afault on.| hl@ part but the same has got no merit to doubt
the credibility of these. witnesses. . ..

20. _ = kearped advocate on behalf of the accused persons alse drawn
the attention of the ‘Court that the investigating officer has manufactured the
case in order to rope the accused pérsons and this Court in absence of any
- corroboration from Independent source should not rely upon his evidence. He
has shown the selzure of guns, shrrt at the house of Duryodhan Sanamajhi,
Munda Badamajhi and shirt at the house of Sanatan Badamajhi and had
attempted to impiicate them _fer some ulterjor motive. themise the evidence
of investigating officer cann_d; {?e-a_qcepte_d.ee he failed to arrange T.I. Parade
for the su'?spects for which the entire lnvestigati_on can be said to be
perfunctory. Hon'ble Supreme Court In a case. reported in AIR 1996 SC 3079
in Tahir vs. State while dealing with a similar quest:on has held:

"In our opinion no_infirmity attaches to the testimony of the
police offraa!s, merely because they belong to the police force
“and theéré is no rule of law or evidence which lays down that
conviction .cannot be recorded on the evidence of the poiice
officials, if found refiable, unless corroborated by - some
independent - eviderice. The Rule of Prudence, however, only
requires a imore careful scrutiny of their evidence, since they
can be said to be ifiterested in the résuit of the' case projected
-by them. Where the evidence of the police officials, after careful
scrutiny, inspires confidence and jt.found lto be trustmﬂhy and -’
reliable, it can form basis of conviction and the absence of some
- independent witness. of the locality to lend corroboratio heir
- evidence, does not in any way affect the creditwarthmgﬁ’ the
_ prosecuticn case.”
“ Wherever, the evidence of the police officer, after careful scrutiny, inspires

* confidence and it found to be trustworthy and reliable, it can form the basis of
conviction and the absence of some independent witness of the locality does
not in any way affect the creditworthiness of the Brosecution case. The courts
have aiso expressed the view that no ln’ﬂrm:ty attaches toc the testimeny of
the pollce officers merely because they belong to the police force and there is
no rule of law or evidence which lays_down that conviction cannot be recorded

“on the evidence of the police officials, if found reliable, unless corroborated by
some Independenu. evidence. Such, reliab}e and trustwérthy statement can
form the basis of conviction. In the case of Girija Prasad (AIR 2007 SC 3106

- 2007 AIR SCW 5589 (supra.) Hon'ble court noticed the judgment of the

Court in the case of Aher Raja-Khima vs. State of Saurashtra, AIR 1956 SC
217, a judgment pronounced more than half a century ago noticing the

_principle that the presumption that a persen_.act::'r}onestly applies as much in

€
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favour of a pohce officer as of other persons and it is not a judicial approach
to distrust and suspeaj)im without good grounds therefore This principle has
been referi'ea tﬁ m a plethoreoﬁother cases bs weil

. _21. i ~' Learned P.P. relying upon the rulings of Hon’ble Court in one

case repoited-in 2011 50 OCR 459 (supra) has urged before me that the
investigating. officer may be negligent in not examining the eyewitnesses
_available at the- “spot, but it cannot be the sole ground to reject the
prosecution case. It is also urged that absence of T.I Parade Is also not a
ground to disbelieve the prosecution case. He has relied upon observation of
Hon’ble Apex Court In ‘one case reported in 2004 (4) Crimes 294 (SC)
(Supra) in which it has been held at Para 17 that as a general ruie the .
substantive evidence of a witness is._the statement fade in Court. The

evndence of mereidentiﬂcatron of the accused person at the trial for the first

ttme is from its very nature inherently of a,weak character. The purpose of a
prior test . identification, therefore, s to test and strei'igthen the. :
trustworthiness of that evidence. It Is accordingly considered & safe rule of <
prudence te generally look for corroboration of the sworn’ testimony of
witnesses in Court as to the Identity of the accused who' are strangers to
them, in the form of earlier ndent:ﬂcation proceedings. This rule of prudence,
however, is subject to exceptions, when, for exampile, the C‘burt Is impressed'

by a particuiar witness on whose testimony it can safely rely, without such or.

other correboration. The™ identiﬂcation parade belong to the stage of
investigation, and- there is no provision in the -Code which obliges th‘)
investigating agency to hold or confers a right upon the ec‘cused to claim, ua
test identiﬂﬁtion parade, They do not constitute substantive evidence and

' these parades are essentially governed by Section 162 of the Code. Failure to

'ioid 4 test identification parade would not make inadmissible the evidence of
identlﬂcetion in Court. The weight to be oﬂached to such identiﬂcation should

" be @ matter for the Courts of fact. In appropriate cases it may accept the

evidence of identification even without insisting on correboration.
22. 1 have carefully gone through the entire evidence adduced by
the investigating officer P.W. 29, In categoricai terms he has stated that soon

" aﬂer teking investigation he examlned the documents prepared by the

previous 1.0. P.W.16 and on scrutiny of the documenm left by the assailants

- at the spot vide Ext.6/2 satisfied about the Megists. link in the offence. His

evidence with regard to seizure_of the muzzle loading guns from the house of :
Duryodnan Sanamajhi, Munda Badmajhi.and 2 gun from the house of Sanatan
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Badmajhi clearly Implicate ‘the above accused Persons. The report of the
ballistic expert Pwawuzsrﬂamgjﬁ 2ed the cartridges and the guns have

alsé ‘oﬁine;f thﬁ!i

evidence collected by the Invest}gati-ng officer. The above evidence connects
the presence of the accused pérson_s at the site. ¢ =g
23. g - Itis submitted by Iea_rrgec_i P.P. referring the case report in

y adducing circumstantiaj evidence

-

“0 provide adequate procf regarding the meeting of minds whic essential in
d inal xfonspiracv by__adduclng sensitive evidence in Court,
¥ Furkhénnore to oonstlt&fe'an'offencé of dﬁngplm__cy ‘it'lsﬂofhkcéssa'ry that the

derson involved have “knowledge of all the stages: of action. In fact, mere

¢ evidence 15 difficyt to o5tain, The

ever, in the eﬁ'@ﬁf‘tﬁat c:rcufhstantia‘l :

€s necessary for which prosecution

»'h?
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commtssion of the offences Other parts of the evidence dlearly indicate a well
pianned consplracy hy all. thg:> accused persons to eliminate Swamiji. The

 evidence of P.W. 17 and 18 those marked the presence of the accused persons

along with other persons wearing khaki dress and there was a discussion on
the murder of Swamiji clearly-'lndicate that the central theme of the discussion
was fo elimlnate Swarni;l The evidence of P.W.17 that scon after the incident
accused Garar 1ath and Bijaya were distributing - sweets at Kotgarh Church
further indicate prindpte object behind the conspiracy which nothing but
assassination of Swamiji. There being an agreement between the accused
" persons to eliminate Swamiji this Court can safely infer that a conspiracy has
" hatched by the accused persons to eliminate Swamiji-in active connivance of »
the Maoists organlzation 4 !
In my considered view -the prosecutlon has sucoess%\:uliy laid
cIrcumstantlal evidence to connect the accused persons with the alleged
“offences. At first there was a motive followed by & conspiracy of the accused
" persons to ellminatepéwa::mlji followed by act. The seizure of the guns from the
'possessipn of the a_aécused perscns namely Duryodhan and Munda and the
connecting link befween the gun and the injury on deceased Bhaktimayee
vide Ext.30 and the evidence of the.sclentific officer that the seized guns were
used about four to five months prior.to the date of report dtd.12. o0z. 2009
'cieariy estabhsh that the present accused persons:have used the said guns
" which are fater recovered from their possession. In my view the above

" evidénce has created a complete chain connecting the accused persons w:th .

the alieged offences =
24, : H:ghl.g’ltmg the ewdence of investigating ‘officer with regard > il
seizure of mobile phones from the possession of Bijaya Sanseth and Ganqnath
Chalanseth vide Ext.40 and 41 during. their interrogation at Kotgarh .pBﬂce
station and the receipt of call detail reports of said mobile phones vide Ext.43
- and 44,'lear-nqd'P.P‘. submitted that the accused persons have also committed
offence of theft of mobile phones. The call detall report indicate that on the
aneged date of incident the mobile phones were switched off which not only
indicate thelr oornplacency with' the offence but also the fact of theft of the

i mobile phones Learned adyocate on behalf of the accused persons submitted

that the prosecutlon has failed to ﬁmduce any decument in support of
ownersmp of the possession of mebile phones. Even If for sake of argument it
is accepted that the mobile phenes were switched off on the alieged date of
incident tb_at cannot_ be a ground to connect with the offence. Admittedly no
document in éupbort of mobile phones has been produced by the prosecution.
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There.is-also lack of clear evidence with regard to possession of mobile

phones there may b‘é‘it%iferyotmoblle phones from the possession of Bijay
and Gurunath, but in absence of ‘dlear evidence it cannot be concluded that

-they have ‘committed theft of the mobile phones. Of course the accused
- persons: namely Bijaya Kumar Sanaseth and Garanath Chalianseth have

--examined themselves as P.W.1 and P.w 2 o disprove the theft of mabile
phones, in. the absence of any positive ‘evidence from the side of prosecution
. no offence lﬁdhrmlvw~fs made out " e

25, ..% ddnithe previous Raragraphs I have already discussed regarding

| seizure-of guns from the posses lﬁii”df"UUfyoaﬁah'éanamajhi and Munda
- Bademajhi Vide EXt.4 and 5. THere-is ho reason to disbelieve the above

seizure. The report of the ballistic expert vide Ext.31, 32 and 33 dearly
indicate that the seized guns were In working order. The evidence of tha
ballistic-expert P;W.26 who vide Ext.35 has Further stated that the muzzle
loading guns were used four to five months prior to the date of ’éﬁa"rhin'ation.
ciearly indicate that arotnd the ‘occurrence’ date the said guns have been
used. The accused persons have feited to produce any license in support of
Possession of theirguns. Learned advocate or bEREIF of the hcc;.:;aed persons
relyfng upon the rulings\of-Hon‘hle'Apéx Court In cases report'eq' in AIR 1972 .

.8C 1756'in Gunmiant Lal v. State of Madhys Pradesh and AIR 1972 SC 1899 in.

Pabitar Singh vs: State of Bihar has Urg€d Betore e that there Is Tack of
ciarity. i the evidence With regard to seizure of guns from the consciotis

- -Possession of the accused persons. The ‘evidence on record indicate that™the

family of the accused persons were afss staying In the said house. Hance re
offence_under sections Arms is made UL, The above submission failed to
convince me. The investigating i:h‘fo‘eﬁ hes stated to have seized the guns
from the possession of the accused persons. Nothing has been elicited during

_ Cruss-examination rather -=the-'—’=ihvestig"ai‘tr'z§ officer at ‘paragraph 35 of the
5 cross-exa]f!ilnation has- admitted that during search of house of Duryodhan

. none:ef the inmates were-present thére. This clearly indicate that Duryodhan

was_ in conscious possession of the gun. Likewise thére has been no cross-

= examination with regard to seizureof ‘gun from conscioys possession of
-, @ccused Munda Badamajhi. The investigating officer has obtained Sanction
-Order. vide. Ext.45 to launch prosecution. ‘Sice e guns have been seiz

from the possession of Munda Badamajhi and Duryodhan Sanamajhi and the
District Magistrate; Phulbsni heve sanctioned for their prosecution under Arms

Act both of them are liable for offenices’ U/Si25 and 35 of the Arms Act. The

e



other accused _p{ersgds can _never be held liable for the offences under Arms
EeSr I5" L4010 Act" ! . % :
: X .26,
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3 i -hai_v_e alr-‘-'l ; de@ussed the éwqéq; es well as the settled
_ 5 posntion of Jaw on the rglgted Issues at Iength Hon‘bte Court has constantly
THE ‘eminded trial Cousts o be very sensltive in ceses partlcularly involving
w10, shelnous. ofrenoés and

ey remmded that the tﬂel Courx; owes obligatlon to the cltlzen of the oountry to

- ofthe aime Involvlng the sentiment of general public

shouid be brought to justlce Now—a-days the oﬂ'ences are committed in a
= o highly profess:o'\al manner and very oﬂ:en the perpetretors wanted to gain

poiltlcal mneage by committing offences to attract the attention of general
- publie. xhe case at hand is a dessic examp!e tn which one of the luminary of

Hindu community who dedicated the whoie Iife for the upliﬂ:ment of the tribal

=24 community of this under deueloped district of Orissa lost his life. The facts as

P

presented before the Court speaks volumes on the manner In which-he was

them. It is on the record that some of the perpetretors were masked and~
. exscuted. crime within.a shott span of t:me while armeq wa\ gunsgnd other
. . weapons of offence. The above hes further enhenced thg duby of the‘Court to

paragrephs I have already observed t‘hat the death of Swarnljl and\?our owers-

. were. homicidal_and the _injuries notec in, thew body were ante mortem. {n :
nature. The prosecution has led elaborate ev_tdence and attemp’ted o 'c'dnned :

c SN e il ZHIE presert accused persons in_connection with L\omia::cial death of Swamua
4 . . --and others,-So far s the evtde‘n%e of the eyewitnesses P.W.32 and Jdre

BOOUM b -~ Goncemed . this Lourt hesmreadx observed they are relizble witnesses. Both
- the above witnesses heve deariy Indlcated ‘about the. complacency “of the
_— accused Duryodhan arzd Bijaya wrth the alleged oﬁenz:e-s The circumstantial
evldence connecting the other accusﬁ& persons wlth the alleged offence
leading to recovery of weapons of oﬁ'ence beside opmlon of the ballistic expert.
s Aaein i coupled with the evidence of crlmlnaLconspiracy has further clearly connected
BRI e e :he other accused persons nemefy Munda, Sanatan, Garanath, Shaskar and
BJ&hade& The evidence on record :has dearly established that the above

persons Including Durycdhan and” ijaya were having sufficient motive to

- eliminate Swamiji and in pursuance of such motive conspired to eliminate

: Swamiji and having made preparation to commit the effence executed the

same killing Swamiji and four others inside" }afeshp‘Eta Ashram. In the

‘previcus paragraphs I have discussed-in detail about the conspiracy angle in

g o

assassina:.ed leavmg little chanoe to the. lew enforclng agendes 1o epprei‘uend'_ e

be_extra wg:lant while examining the eviderce on necord In the prewous P iv
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T whith' it is found that the present accused persons in connivance with the

: Maoists organizations have eliminated Swamiji. I must mention that learned

TT 7 77 7 adiocate 'on behalf of the accused persons has very well attempted to create

e a shadow over the genuineness of thé’ prosecution “gase and wanted to

o © T gstablish that the withesses more particularly P.W.17, 18, 32, 33, 24-md at

' ‘ “last the investigating officer P.W.29 are highly unreliable w[tnesses “But 1

Tl T Taited Tto apprediste -his  effort.~ As ‘noted “@arlier ‘the ' offence has been
e e committed 'in “a ‘highly professional “manner: Therefore it is not normally -

o R0 Eiﬁe&éd that there will be direct evidence to connect eli the perpetrators with

'~ “the trime. The evidence collected by prosecution against the above named

©7s T T accused persons©is sufficient and clear erough to-€onnect them with the

© T dlleged offences. Accordingly it is held “that “6n 23.08.2008 the accused

-7 persons being fembsrs of an untawful essembly in prosecution of common

~ object of ‘which fiot only trespassed - inside Jalespeta Ashram but also

| “eofimitted murder of ‘Swamiji ‘and “others.” In-sbsence of clear eviderice

Tegarding theft of mobile’phones’ this-part of the prosecution case most fail.

(hey were aiso” held for \.onspr'ng'fo eliminate Swamiji- With regérd to the

\ %o fence under Arms Act there is sufficient miaterial on record thatjauryodhan

l ‘Safd Munda Sadamajhi were not only in possession of ‘arms am‘d amrnunmon
,“Q it also used'the same during commission of the offerice. The prosecution has

iiso obtained the Santtion” Ordef-fromithe District Magistrate. \Accordingly

~ botH of them‘*ﬂﬁé‘:ﬂﬁo found to be held liable for commission of offences urlder

S ERFNEIEL. = sivmetiins - SOt PO
CEH" e Ry T IRthe result; 1 hold the actused persons guilty of offe ;-
SR S S sy, a8, Ao 3677149 and séction1208-0F the-Indian Penal Codd)
. "'L"ngi.%‘f ] ~ Further | hold the accused persons namely Duryodhan Sanamajhi and Munda
U T Badmaghi-guiltty of offencesTu/s:25(1 B (@) and 27 (1) of the Arms Act beside

T T - other offences referred above.-Further, 1 hold all the accused persons not
gl T for tﬁ’é"offences pur'ﬂshabla u/e 369/149 I:PiG-and acquit them there
. S0 S unﬂer 3 S JE=ED L 7 o i g =y Reips

T e ' ©- - Ne'order on seized properties sifce split uprcase against other accused
persons is pondlng -
Pronounced the judgment i the Open- Court on thns 30™ day of
w> 7 - September, 2013 under my hand and sea! of the Court.

=08 L) TS NEIC ! - . £ o 5 =

i a g T PR S Addlt‘onal Sessions Judge
_ ; . ] o ~ Phulbani
=0 Typed outto my dictation =~ - = _ = =
: and corrected by me. _
- Additlonal Sessions Judge
Phulbani



HEARIN N TH ESTI F SENTENCE DTD.03.10.2013:

Heard the learned P.P. and advocate on behalf of the
convicts on sentence at length. Learned advocate on behalf of the
convicts urged before me that as per the evidence of the 1.0. there is no
criminal antecedent of the convicts. Further the convicts as well as their
family have suffered a lot due to long detention of the convicts in
custody. Therefore this Court should take liberal view while imposing
punishment.

On the counter argument learned P.P. submitted that this

Court may impose punishment strictly in accordance with law

considering the nature and gravity of the offences.

Considering the facts and‘circumstances of the case, its
reparation in the society and other related matters, this Court is inclined
to award the convicts Sanatan Badamajhi, Garanath Challanseth, Bijaya
Kumar Sanaseth, Bhaskar Sanamajhi and Budhadev Naik to undergo
g,;”.-- Rigorous imprisonment for 02 (two) years and to pay a fine of Rs.1000/-
(Rupees one thousand) in default of payment to undergo further R.I. for
03 (three) months for the offences u/s.147 1.P.C., Rigorous
imprisonment for 02 (two) years and to pay a fine of Rs.1000/- (Rupees
one thousand) and in default of payment of fine to undergo further R.1.
for 03 (three) months each for offences u/s.148 I[PC, Rigorous
imprisonment for 05 (five) years and to pay a fine of Rs.6000/- (Rupees
six thousand) and in default of payment of fine to undergo further R.I.
06 (six) months each for the offence u/s.449/149 I.P.C., to undergo
Imprisonment for Life each for the offence punishable u/s.302/149 1.P.C.
and to undergo Imprisonr.nent for Life each for the offence punishable

U/s.120-B of 1.P.C.



Further in case of convicts Duryodhan Sanamajhi and
Munda Badamajhi, this Court is inclined to award Rigorous imprisonment
for 02 (two) years and to pay a fine of Rs.1000/- (Rupees one thousand)
in default of payment to undergo further R.I. for 03 (three) months each
for the offence u/s.147 1.P.C., Rigorous imprisonment for 02 (two) years
and to pay a fine of Rs.1000/- (Rupees one thousand) and in default of
payment of fine to undergo further R.I. for 03 (three) months each for
the offence u/s.148 IPC, Rigorous imprisonment for 05 (five) years and
to pay a fine of Rs.6000/- (Rupees six thousand) and in default of
payment of fine to undergo further R.I. 06 (six) months each for the
offence u/s.449/149 1.P.C., Rigorous imprisonment for 02(two) years

and to pay a fine of Rs.1000/- (Rupees one thousand) in default to

undergo R.I. for 03 (three) months each for the offence u/s.25 (1-B) (a)
of Arms Act, Rigorous imprisonment for 03 (three) years and to pay a
fine of Rs.1000/- (Rupees one thousand) in default to undergo further
R.I. for 03 (three) months each for the offence u/s.27(1) of Arms Act;
Imprisonment for Life each for the offences punishable u/s.302/149
I.P.C. énd Imprisonment for Life each for the offence punishable

U/s.120-B of I.P.C.

Further, all the above sentences shall run concurrently. The

period of sentence, if any, be set off.

Pronounced the sentences in the Open Court on this 3™ day of

October, 2013 under my hand and seal of the Court.

Additional Sessions Judge
Phulbani
Typed out to my dictation
and corrected by me.

Additional Sessions Judge
Phulbani
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List of witnesses examined for the prosecution:-
P.W.1

Biswambar Sahu

Uttam Gauntia

Akrura Pradhan
Trilochan Dandasena
Kabiraj Behera
Umeswari Pujari

Bharti Sethi

Simanchal Patra

Pandra Singh
Nilakantha Sadangi
Manoj Kumar Padhi
Sridhar Mahanta
Krishnama Ghadei
Purusottam Lenka

Dr. Biswanath Murmu
Madhusudan Jena Samanta
Mahasingh Kanhar
Birendra Kanhar

Sk. Maniruddin

Dr. V. Girijapati

Srujan Prakash Das
Brahmachari Madhab Chaitanya
Dr. Madhusmita Dash
Prasanta Kumar Parida
Brahmachari Shankar Chaitanya
Ramnath Swain

Manika Behera
Manansananda Tripathy
Santosh Kumar Pattnaik
Sankarshan Pradhan
Kabi Chandra Natha
Kumudini Pradhan
Malati Pradhan

Nayana Acharya

Dr. Sujata Mohanty

List of witnesses examined for the defence:-

D.W.1
D.W.2

Bijaya Kumar Sanseth
Garanath Chhalanseth

List of exhibits marked for the prosecution:-

Extil
Ext:1/1
Ext.2
EXE:Z/1
Ext.3
Ext.3/1
Ext.4

Ext.4/1
Ext.5

Ext.5/1
Ext.3/2
Ext.4/2

Report of Scientific Officer

Signature of P.W.5

Seizure list dtd.16.09.2008

Signature of P.W.5

Seizure list of Black colour half shirt dtd.15.10.2008

Signature of P.W.6

Seizure list dtd.5.10.2008 of country made gun seized from the
house of Duryodhan Sanamajhi

Signature of P.W.6

Seizure list dtd. 05.10.2008 of SBML Gun from house of Munda
Badamajhi -

Signature of P.W.6

Signature of P.W.7 on Ext.3

Signature of P.W.7 on Ext.4



Ext.5/2 Signature of P.W.7 on Ext.5

Ext.6 Seizure list dtd.23.08.2008 of a Letter.

Ext.6/1 Signature of P.W.8 on Ext.6

Ext.6/2 Letter delivered by Gun man (Azad)

Ext.6/3 Signature of P.W.8 on Ext.6/2

EXEE Inquest report on the dead body of Swami Laxamanananda
Saraswati

Ext.7/1 Endorsement with signature of P.W.11 on Ext.7

Ext.8 Inquest Report on the dead body of Mata Bhaktimayee

Ext.8/1 Signature of P.W.11 on Ext.8

Ext.9 Inquest report on the dead body of Kishore Baba

Ext.9/1 Signature of P.W.11 on Ext.9

Ext.10 Inquest report on the dead body of Amrutanandji

Ext.10/1 Signature of P.W.11 on Ext.10

Ext-10 Inquest report in the dead body of Puranjan Ganta

Ext.11/1 Signature of P.W.11 on Ext.11

Ext.4/3 Signature of P.W.13 on Ext.4

Ext.:5/3 Signature of P.W.13 on Ext.5

Ext.3/3 Signature of P.W.13 on Ext.3

Ext.12 Post Mortem Report on dead body of Kishore Baba

Ext.12/1 Signature of P.W.15 on Ext.12

Ext.12/2 Signature of Dr. V. Girijapati on Ext.12

Ext.13 Eil:R:

Ext.13/1 Signature with endorsement of P.W.16 on F.I.R,
Ext.13/2 Signature with endorsement of P.W.16 on F.I.R.
EXt.13/3 Formal F.I.R.

Ext.13/4 Signature of P.W.16 on Formal FIR

Ext.6/3 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.6/2

Ext.6/4 Signature of Madhusudan Sethi

Ext.6/5 Signature of Pradeep Kumar Baliarsingh on Ext.6
Ext.14 Spot Map

Ext.14/1 signature of P.W.16 on Spot Map

* Ext.14/2 Index to the Spot Map

N\, weana io“flfﬁ‘ 'l,
* N

p};‘“‘":\'\ Ext.14/3 Signature of P.W.16 on Index to the spot map
utpat Ext.7/2 signature of P.W.16 on Ext.7
Ext.8/2 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.8
Ext.9/2 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.9
CGH” Ext.10/2  Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.10
Ext.11/2 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.11
Ext.15 Dead Body Challan in respect of Swami Laxamanananda
Saraswati
Ext.15/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.15
Ext.16 Dead Body challan in respect of Mata Bhaktimayee
Ext.16/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.16
Ext.17 Dead body challan in respect of Kishore Baba
Ext.17/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.17
Ext.18 Dead body challan in respect of Amrutanandji
Ext.18/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.18
Ext.19 Dead body challan of Puranjan Ganta
Ext.19/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.19
Ext.20 Seizure List dtd.24.08.2008
Ext.20/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.20
Ext.21 Seizure list dtd.24.08.2008
Ext.21/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.21
Ext.22 Seizure list dtd.24.08.2008
Ext.22/1 Signature of P.W.16 on Ext.22

Ext:23 Seizure list dtd.24.08.2008



Ext.23/1
Ext.24
Ext.24/1
Ext.25
Ext.25/1
Ext.26

Ext.26/1
Ext.26/2
Ext.26/3
Ext.27
Ext.28
Ext.13/5
Ext.20/2
To
Ext.23/2
Ext.7/3
g i
Ext11/3
Ext.29
Ext.29/1
Ext.30
Ext.30/1
Ext.7/4

Ext.23/3
Ext.31
Ext:31/1
Ext.32
Ext.32(1
Ext.33
Ext.34
Ext.35
Ext.35/1
Ext.36
Ext.37
Ext.37/1
Ext.38
Ext.38/1
Ext.39
Ext.39/1
Ext.40
Ext.41
Ext.14/4
Ext.4/4
Ext.4/5
Ext.5/4
Ext.3/4
Ext.42

Ext.42/1
Ext.40/1
Ext.40/2
Ext.41/1

fad
whn

signature of P.W.16 on Ext.23

Post Mortem Report on dead body of Puranjan Ganta
Signature of P.W.19 on Ext.24

Query Report regarding nature of Fire Arm
Signature of P.W.19 on Ext.25

Post Mortem Report on the dead body of
Laxamanananda Saraswati

Signature of P.W.20 on Ext.26

Signature of Dr. Biswanath Murmu

Signature of Dr. Sk. Maniruddin

Polygraph test report (3 sheets)

Polygraph test report

Signature of P.W.22 on Ext.13

Signature of P.W.22 on Ext.20, 21, 22 and 23.

Signature of P.W.22 on Ext.7 to 11

P.M. Report on the Dead body of Mata Bhaktimayee
Signature of P.W.23 on Ext.29

Query Report of P.W.23

Signature of P.W.23 on Ext.30

Signature of 25 on Ext. 7 to 11

Signature of P.W.25 on Ext.20 to 23

Chemical Examination Report (3 sheets)

Signature of P.W.26 on Ext.31

C.E. Report

Signature of P.W.26 on Ext.32

Biology Report

Serology Report (2 sheets)

Query Report

Signature of P.W.26 on Ext.35

Requisition for further examination of accused persons
Prayer for remand of accused persons to police custody
Signature of P.W.28 on Ext.37

Swami

Prayer for further remand of accused persons to police custody

Signature of P.W.27 on Ext.38
Production of accused persons before Court
signature of P.W.27 on Ext.39

Seizure List dtd.14.12.2008 of Cell Phone N0.9437973341
Seizure List dtd.14.12.2012 of Cell Phone N0.9437992341

Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.14

Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.4

Signature of Duryodhan Sanamajhi on Ext.4
Signature of P.W 29 on Ext.5

Singature of P.W.29 on Ext.3

Forwarding Report of Seized Gun and shirt to SFSL,

Bhubaneswar,

Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.42

signature of P.W.29 on Ext.40

Signature of Bijaya Kumar Sanseth on Ext.40
Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.41



Ext.41/2 Signature of Garanath Challanseth on Ext.41

Ext.43 Call Detail Report of Mobile Phone N0.9437992341

Ext.44 Call Detail Report of Mobile Phone No0.9437973341

Ext.45 Sanction order of Collector, Phulbani

Ext.46 Ballistic Examination Report

Ext.47 Seizure list dtd.02.09.2008

Ext.47/1 Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.47

Ext.47/2 Signature of Shankar Chaitanya on Ext.47

Ext.48 . Seizure List dtd.23.10.2008

Ext.48/1 Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.48

Ext.48/2 Signature of Ashok Sahu on Ext.48

Ext.49 Extract of Station Diary Entry No0.492, dtd.22.08.2008

Ext.50 Xerox copy of the Letter written by Pahadia Brundagana

EXt.51 P.M. Report of Amrutanandji

Eut.52 Video Clip played via T.V.

Ext.53 Register seized from Ashok Sahu

Ext.54 Admission Book of Shankar Chaitanya Sanskrit Kanyashram,
Jaleshpeta

Ext.54/1 Relevant entry vide Sl. No.8/194 relating to Kumudini Pradhan

Ext.55 Admission Register of Shankar Chaitanya Sanskrit Kanyashram

Ext.55/1 Relevant entry vide SI.No.55/2004

Ext.54/2 Relevant entry vide Sl. No.19/05 of Folio No.347502

Ext.56 Xerox Copy of Station Diary Entry Book.

Ext.57 Xerox copy of Letter issued by Pahadia Brundagana
Ext.58 Attendance Register of Shankar Chaitanya  Sanskrit
Kanyashram, Jaleshpeta

List of exhibits marked for the defence:-

Ext.A Statement of Malati Pradhan recorded u/s.161 Cr.P.C.
Ext.A/a Signature of P.W.29 on Ext.A

Ext.B Cover Packet of Nokia-1110 Mobile Phone

Ext.B/1 User Guide of Nokia-1110

|55 3 il & Money Receipt against purchase of Mobile Phone
Ext.D Cover of Mobile Telephone

List of M.Os. marked for the prosecution:-
M.O.1 to XI  Photographs

M.O.XII Gun received from the house of Duryodhan Sanamajhi

M.O.XIII Black Colour half shirt from house of Duryodhan.

M.O. X1V Country made gun

M.O. XV Danda of Swamiji

M.O.XVI to

XV1I Mobile phone of Swamiji and Amrutanandji bearing

Nno0.9437921554 and No.9438039895

M.O.XVIII Video Cassette

M.O.XIX Video C.D.

M.O.XX Pistol

M.O.XXI

XXIa to XXIh Empty Cartridges (Nine numbers)
M.O.XXII,

XXIla to

XXIlqg Empty cartridges (sixteen numbers)
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M.O.XXIII,

XXIIIa to

XXIIIc Live Cartridges (four Nos.)

M.O.XXIV Pallets recovered from bodies and from the spot (14 in No.)
M.O. XXV Empty Cartridge

M.O.XXVI,
XXVI/a Broken pieces of PVC Door (2 Nos.)

M.O.XXVII Five pieces of pallets and three nos. of flattened lid collected by
Scientific Officer.

M.O.XXVIIT ~ Gunny containing human blood stains collected from the spot

M.O.xxvIll/a  Signature of P.W.30 on Video Clip.

List of M.Os. marked for the defence:-
NIL

ql—
Addition I,Sessions Judge
Phulbani



